



Grace Academy Coventry

Curriculum Policy 2022-2023

Policy Reference:	GA-SP002
Version:	V13
Status:	Approved
Author:	R Slattery
Applicable to:	Grace Academy Coventry
Checked by:	Governing Body
Valid from:	September 2022
Review Date:	September 2023

Contents

1. Curriculum intent	2
2. Legislation and guidance	3
3. Roles and responsibilities	3
4. Curriculum structure, organisation and planning	5
5. Inclusion	6
6. Teaching and learning protocol	7
7. Assessment	9
8. Homework	12
9. Monitoring and Quality Assurance	13
9. Links with other policies	13

1. Curriculum intent

Our key curriculum aims/intention is to place significant emphasis upon the "powerful knowledge" required to fully understand each subject or curriculum area. It is intended to be sequenced in a logical, coherent fashion which builds upon prior learning, and where required will draw in more abstract concepts in order to contextualise learning and knowledge. Our curriculum will then develop the skill required to apply this knowledge effectively.

We also aim to provide frequent opportunity for students to recall and retrieve this knowledge, ensuring it is retained in the long-term memory and can then be recalled and applied whenever required. Underpinning this is our desire to develop students' general, and also subject-based, literacy and numeracy. This can be distilled into the following five elements, which are referred to as "The Grace Way (Curriculum)":

- Powerful knowledge. This means structuring a curriculum so that lessons focus upon ensuring that key
 knowledge, vital to fully understanding the topic (and possibly other related topics) is delivered and then
 assessed effectively.
- Sequencing. Both shorter and longer-term planning considers sequencing at all times, with regular review periods in which the sequence of curriculum content is re-evaluated and resequenced wherever necessary.
- **Retrieval practice**. Regular assessment incorporates approaches which build long-term retention of knowledge and supports cumulative assessment of curricula over time.
- Literacy and Numeracy opportunities. Curricula will include relevant and meaningful approaches to developing literacy and/or numeracy, which could be more generic as well as subject-specific.
- **Application of knowledge**. Students have regular opportunities to apply all knowledge gained through curriculum delivery, with links to other topics or subjects wherever relevant.

In addition, we also aim to:

- Ensure equal access to learning for all pupils, with high expectations for every pupil and appropriate levels of challenge and support.
- Champion not just inclusion, but "anti-racism" through content, references and ideology featuring within our curricula.
- Promote a positive attitude towards learning.
- Equip pupils with the knowledge and cultural capital they need to succeed in life.
- Develop pupils' independent learning skills and resilience, to equip them for further/higher education and employment.

2. Legislation and guidance

This policy reflects the requirements for academies to provide a broad and balanced curriculum as per the Academies Act 2010, and the National Curriculum programmes of study which we have chosen to follow.

It also reflects requirements for inclusion and equality as set out in the Special Educational Needs and Disability Code of Practice 2014 and Equality Act 2010, and refers to curriculum-related expectations of governing boards set out in the Department for Education's Governance Handbook. This policy complies with our funding agreement and Articles of Association.

3. Roles and responsibilities

3.1 The governing body

The governing board will monitor the effectiveness of this policy and hold the Principal to account for its implementation.

The governing board will also ensure that:

• A robust framework is in place for setting curriculum priorities and aspirational targets

- The school is complying with its funding agreement and teaching a "broad and balanced curriculum" which includes english, maths, science and (subject to providing the right to withdraw) religious education, and enough teaching time is provided for pupils to cover the requirements of the funding agreement
- Proper provision is made for pupils with different abilities and needs, including children with special educational needs (SEN)
- All courses provided for pupils below the age of 19 that lead to qualifications, such as GCSEs and Alevels, are approved by the Secretary of State
- The school implements the relevant statutory assessment arrangements
- It participates actively in decision-making about the breadth and balance of the curriculum
- Pupils from year 8 onwards are provided with independent, impartial careers guidance, and that this is appropriately resourced

3.2 Principal

The Principal is responsible for ensuring that this policy is adhered to, and that:

- The amount of time provided for teaching the required elements of the curriculum is adequate and is reviewed by the governing board
- They manage requests to withdraw children from curriculum subjects, where appropriate
- The governing board is fully involved in decision-making processes that relate to the breadth and balance of the curriculum
- The governing board is advised on whole-school targets in order to make informed decisions
- Proper provision is in place for pupils with different abilities and needs, including children with SEN

3.3 Vice Principal

The Vice Principal is also responsible for ensuring that this policy is adhered to, and that:

- All required elements of the curriculum, and those subjects which the school chooses to offer, have aims
 and objectives which reflect the aims of the school and indicate how the needs of individual pupils will be
 met
- All subjects, departments and faculties have clear curricula, which reflect the Academy's intent, local context and the most recent exam board specifications, examination requirements and statutory requirements.
- The school's procedures for assessment and reporting to Parents/Carers meet all legal requirements
- The effectiveness of the curriculum is regularly reviewed, with any required improvements or developments actioned. This will be shared with appropriate stakeholders.

3.4 Assistant Principal: Teaching and Learning/Vice Principal

The Assistant Principal/Vice Principal is responsible for ensuring that:

- QA processes are clear, shared with staff and have a strong curriculum focus.
- The Teaching and Learning mechanisms encouraged and promoted by the Academy are employed throughout departments and are clearly visible through lesson visits, work scrutinies and other QA processes
- Lesson visits focus not only upon the teaching within that lesson, but all aspects of the curriculum, including the departmental/faculty intent, sequence of lessons, assessment and future planning

3.5 Heads of Department/Heads of Faculty/Lead Teachers

These middle leaders are responsible for ensuring that:

• All information and requirements relating to the curriculum are clearly communicated with all relevant staff, especially non-specialists.

- There are regular line management and/or departmental/faculty meetings, clearly minuted with actions and agenda items relating to curriculum.
- They are signed up to the relevant awarding boards and bodies in order to be fully informed about examination board updates, specification changes and any other information relevant to curriculum.

3.6 Parents and Carers

Parents and Carers are encouraged to:

- Engage with Parents' Evenings, information evenings relating to their child, the options process in Year 9 and other relevant curriculum-based processes '
- Support with reading, homework/home learning, and revision.
- Communicate any queries or concerns through their child's form tutor

4. Curriculum structure, organisation and planning

4.1 Key Stage 3

The Key Stage 3 (KS3) curriculum runs from Year 7 to Year 9 and focuses on the delivery and application of the powerful knowledge required at Key Stage 4 (KS4) and beyond. Students study the core curriculum of Maths, English and Science but also have the opportunity to experience and master subjects drawn from a wide range of specialisms. The rich and varied curriculum ensures balance across a student's timetable. In addition, our tutor-time Ethos curriculum complements the wider curriculum in embedding key learning skills and reflection exercises into students' daily routine.

The KS3 curriculum is designed, implemented and reviewed by leaders and their teams. This is managed to ensure that key topics are delivered, relevant assessments are provided and highly effective feedback is given. Over the three year KS3 period, students are supported so they will be in a strong position to make choices around the pathways available at KS4. Subjects currently studied at KS3 are:

- English
- Maths
- Science
- Geography
- History
- Modern Foreign Languages
- R.E.
- P.E.
- Computer Science
- Expressive Arts
- Design & Technology
- PSHE

4.2 Key Stage 4

The curriculum at Key Stage 4 (KS4) will allow students to specialise. The KS4 curriculum is a broad offering of a wide range of GCSE/equivalents in order to suit individual interests, passions and future life choices. As well as adhering to Statutory Progress 8 requirements, the curriculum at KS4 emphasises preparation with college/employment to give our young people the best start in life beyond the Academy. All students will study English Language, English Literature, Mathematics and Science (combined or separate). In addition, their pathway choices will include the study of Humanities (Geography/History) and MFL is encouraged. All students also have timetabled time dedicated to Physical Education. This allows students to experience a broad and balanced curriculum characterised by academic rigour and vocational opportunities. Students will have the opportunity to choose from a broad range of subjects including Geography, History, French, Spanish, Art, Drama, Business & Enterprise, Health & Fitness and Health & Social Care (BTEC). In addition to the qualifications on offer, the curriculum at Grace is also intended to ensure students can navigate the challenges of life in a complex world with confidence and support. Therefore, the Ethos programme during assemblies, form time and Ethos Days gives students support with work experience, college applications, emotional well-being, British values and mental health. As in KS3, our tutor-time Ethos curriculum

complements the wider curriculum in embedding key learning skills and reflection exercises into students' daily routine.

4.3 Post-16

The Curriculum in Post-16 meets the learning needs of the cohort and wherever possible, student preferences. The Academy has developed accredited pathways at Level 3 to include A-level and BTEC qualifications. A strong Ethos programme is embedded at Post 16 level to ensure students are prepared on a Social, Moral and Cultural level in all aspects of Health and Well-being. Study programmes include 15 hours minimum per week of academic study and 1 hour per week devoted to Careers and Study Skills. All students will leave the Academy with wide ranging experiences to complement their academic achievements. Work Experience and Volunteering are essential elements in their personal development and assist in preparing them for their future at university or in the world of work. The Curriculum in Year 13 will follow through from Year 12 with the same balance of both academic and non-academic studies.

4.4 Wider curriculum

Across the Academy, Religious Education embraces the Social, Moral, Cultural and Spiritual Dimensions and aspects of Health Education (PSHE). It also deals with behaviour, respect, courtesy, honesty, integrity, work ethic, responsibility, reliability and development of a culture of achievement as part of a planned programme including sex and relationship education. This is delivered as part of values days, tutor times and in other lessons depending upon the Academy and the specific syllabus being taught. Further details are available by contacting the Academy directly or within the Relationships and Sex Education Policy.

The five "British Values" are delivered implicitly through our tutor-time programme, with levels of complexity appropriate to student ages.

4.5 Extra-curricular activities

Extra-curricular activities are an integral part of our curriculum and are actively encouraged across all key stages. The Academy regularly reviews and updates the extra-curricular offer, which:

- focuses upon a wide-reaching offer, incorporating sports, the arts, academics, personal development, and inclusivity
- is promoted and shared with staff, students and parents
- either extends and builds upon the current curriculum or provides additional curriculum opportunities
- draws upon staff expertise or utilises outside agencies
- is acknowledged and rewarded in line with the Academy approach for rewards.

4.6 Meeting local needs

Curricula are reviewed regularly in order to ensure that local needs and context are taken into account when considering intent and implementation. Alongside this consideration, the Academy also takes into account the national needs and context, especially when considering the impact of Covid-19.

Individual subject intent statements and curriculum plans are available on our Academy website, and can be printed on request.

4.7 Careers guidance

Careers guidance is delivered through a number of sources, including the tutor programme, PSHE lessons, external agencies, online sessions and 1-1 designated impartial careers advisor. Events begin in KS3 and are tailored to the needs of students. The careers provision is evaluated in line with statutory requirements. Further information is available in the CEAIG policy.

5. Inclusion

Teachers set high expectations for all pupils. They will refer to the ambitious targets set by the Academy and use appropriate assessment to construct and deliver a challenging, ambitious and appropriately scaffolded curriculum for all groups, including:

- More-able pupils
- Pupils with low prior attainment
- Pupils from disadvantaged backgrounds
- Pupils with SEN

• Pupils with English as an additional language (EAL), and specifically, students who are newly-arrived to the UK.

Teachers will create curricula so that pupils with SEN and/or disabilities can study every National Curriculum subject, wherever possible, and remove barriers to student achievement. Teachers will also take account of the needs of pupils whose first language is not English. Curricula will be designed to provide appropriate opportunities help pupils to develop their English (specifically literacy), and to support students so they can be active participants.

When setting targets for SEND students and students with profound EAL needs, the Academy looks to set ambitious and aspirational targets, whilst taking into account the effect these targets may have upon these students. On occasions, the Academy may feel it more appropriate to amend targets for some of these students, with parents/carers kept informed of any proposed amendments.

Further information can be found in our statement of equality information and objectives, and in our SEN policy and information report.

6. Teaching and learning protocol

In creating a knowledge-based curriculum across all subjects, the Academy recognises the importance of students retaining and applying the subject matter they are taught. As a result, teaching and learning approaches should be simplistic, highly effective and support a systematic and sequential delivery, whilst allowing for misconceptions to be revisited and addressed when required. As a default position, quality-first teaching approaches should be challenging and aspirational for all students, with scaffolding for those requiring additional support. The Academy strongly believes the following teaching and learning principles, applied consistently and effectively over time and supported by appropriate assessment methodology, lead to students retaining and demonstrating knowledge over longer periods.

6.1 Effective Teaching

- **Meet and greet.** Teachers are ready when students arrive at the lesson, greet students upon arrival and address any barriers to effective engagement and learning.
- Engage tasks. Once in the lesson, students have a task which requires them to recall (and potentially apply) knowledge taught previously. When most effective, engage tasks entail students recalling knowledge taught over longer periods, therefore solidifying this into the long-term memory.
- **Big Questions.** Each lesson has a "Big Question" which relates directly to the powerful knowledge required in order to progress, and the knowledge delivered in that lesson/sequence of lessons allows students to answer this question.
- Expert Knowledge. Teachers, under the guidance of their middle leader, are best placed to make decisions upon the best possible methodology and delivery format for the expert knowledge students need to know.
- **Support and Challenge.** Curriculum delivery is appropriately scaffolded in order to meet student needs, with particular attention given to those students with SEND or profound EAL needs.

The Academy also promotes the following approaches when considering Teaching and Learning:

- The continued application of "cognitive load theory" so that information is presented in a manageable way.
- Frequently setting tasks which require students to learn and apply knowledge independently, including the use of **revision and retention strategies**.
- Incorporating the use of **knowledge organisers**, critical content or other alternative resources so students are encouraged to become skilled in drawing out relevant "powerful knowledge"

6.2 Effective Learning

The learning aspect of teaching and learning expects students to meet a number of common standards throughout their journey from KS3 to Post-16.

- We are on time. Prompt arrival is vital to the learning experience. Students are expected to show the respect, diligence and organisational skills to be able to meet deadlines and take ownership of their learning.
- We are prepared. Students are expected to bring the correct equipment to lessons. Moreover, 'preparation' also assumes that students are mentally prepared to enter the learning environment in a calm, respectful manner and are ready to perform to the best of their ability.
- We respect our community. Our Academy is at the heart of our community. Respecting the community means understanding responsibilities and treating every aspect of the learning environment with respect. This includes staff, students, visitors, books, equipment and the building itself.
- **We Listen**. Knowledge can only be imparted if students are listening. It is imperative that students understand when to contribute and when to listen to the contributions of others.
- **We Participate**. Students are encouraged to get the most of the learning experience by being active in the classroom. Participation means contributing to discussions, being inquisitive and seeking clarification.

6.3 Literacy and numeracy

When leaders are designing curricula, opportunities to develop literacy and numeracy should be in-built and are to be clearly evident during implementation. Curriculum delivery should also be informed and supported by the literacy and numeracy strategy documents. It is the responsibility of all leaders associated with these to ensure both the literacy and numeracy strategy are shared and understood by all relevant staff, and the effectiveness and impact are evaluated. Further information can be found in our literacy and numeracy strategies.

6.4 CPD and reviewing

The Academy recognises the importance of the role CPD plays when considering teaching and learning, and will:

- share the teaching and learning priorities with all staff, ensuring there is full clarity around each element.
- inform students and parents of the priorities, so they are able to engage effectively.
- provide ongoing CPD and bespoke training during directed time, focusing upon best practice and how to employ strategies for maximum impact.
- allow staff to feed back to ALT regarding the Teaching and Learning protocol, via middle leaders, line management and department meetings.
- continue to engage with all recent theory, literature and evidence-based research around successful teaching and learning approaches, employing wherever relevant or appropriate.
- Ensure workload and staff wellbeing are paramount in all decisions relating to teaching and learning.

The effectiveness of the Teaching and Learning protocol will be measured and assessed as part of the Academy's monitoring and Quality Assurance processes. In addition, ALT and governance will be kept informed as to the effectiveness of the protocol and impact upon student outcomes. Effectiveness can be measured by, but not limited to, the following factors:

- Student outcomes in terminal examinations at KS4 and Post-16
- Student outcomes in unit assessments at KS4 and Post-16
- Student outcomes in externally-validated assessments at KS3, KS4 or Post-16
- Evidence of student work produced
- Careers destination data
- Post-16 retention numbers
- University destination data

7. Assessment

7.1 Rationale

Assessment is an integral part of any curriculum and reflects the formal and informal judgements made by teachers and students about standards of work, and is measured, where appropriate, against nationally agreed criteria. Formative, diagnostic assessment is used throughout the year to inform teaching and learning and identify any areas for improvement. Summative assessment is used to evaluate learning and progress by awarding a grade of attainment, or percentage, to a student. This will enable the Academy to assess student progress in a coherent and consistent way, and subsequently facilitate higher achievement for students across all levels of ability. Work undertaken by students requires feedback (written or verbal) in order to enable them to know and understand the progress they are making, with the next steps required so they can continue to improve. It will also inform staff as to where there are gaps in students' knowledge and understanding, or misconceptions which need addressing.

Summative Assessments are given periodically to determine at a particular point in time what students know and do not know, and to identify any gaps in learning, individually or collectively. More robust and informative examples of summative assessment include:

- GCSE examination papers
- Interim assessments
- End-of-unit tests
- End-of-term exams / assessments (AP's)

Summative assessments are a means to measure, at a particular point in time, student learning relative to specification. It is currently used towards the end of a term, in accordance with the Tove Learning Trust (TLT) Assessment Policy. Summative assessment is used to quantify achievement, to reward achievement and to provide accurate data for the whole school analysis including school reports. Therefore, the robustness, validity and reliability of summative assessments are of the greatest importance.

Formative assessment is an integral part of high quality, day-to-day teaching and learning. When incorporated into classroom practice, it provides the information needed to adjust teaching and learning and will affect what the student and the teacher does next. In this sense, formative assessment informs both teachers and students about student understanding or possible misconceptions at a point when timely adjustments can be made. It is therefore entirely reasonable for teachers to move away from schemes of work or the planned sequence in which knowledge is to be delivered on those occasions where it is clear students' learning in a particular area needs to be reinforced or re-visited. These adjustments help to ensure students achieve, targeted learning goals within a set time frame. Although formative assessment strategies appear in a variety of formats, there are some distinct ways to distinguish them from summative assessments in that they are more "low-stakes", and do not take the form of the summative assessments listed above.

7.2 Principles

- The focus of any written and/or verbal feedback must be to give students a clear understanding of how well they have gained knowledge, concepts and skills, address misconceptions, correct spelling or non-subject-specific literacy and then explain what needs to be done to extend their learning. This applies to all formative AND summative assessments undertaken.
- Students' assessment of their own and their peers' progress and attainment is a central function in the learning process.
- Time will be built into lessons for students to reflect on and respond to teacher marking and feedback ("DIRT")
- Whole-class marking will help students to progress in their learning and will be meaningful, manageable and motivating.
- The marking/feedback strategy/strategies used are designed to ensure teacher workload is minimised.
- All teachers will be responsible for the continuous assessment of students and for the accurate and timely completion of any required data drops, mark sheets, reports or other related documents.
- Formal assessments will be signposted in curriculum plans and schemes of work.
- Formal assessments will cover all attainment targets appropriate to the subject/unit of work either currently being delivered or which has been previously delivered this academic year, therefore ensuring assessment is cumulative.
- In Key Stage 4 and Post-16, the school will provide opportunities for formal summative examinations (e.g. mock exams) at least once a year for selected subjects, year groups or groups of students.

- All teachers will provide regular opportunities for self-assessment, and wherever appropriate, peer assessment.
- All subjects and departments will use assessment folders, which for each student contains the summative assessments used to measure progress and attainment. These will be regularly updated as per the departmental instruction.

7.3 Minimum expectations: Whole-school assessment

For Key Stage 3

Three Summative assessments a year in accordance with the school assessment calendar – one per term.

For Key Stage 4 and Post-16

Three Summative assessments a year in accordance with the school assessment calendar – one per term, or in line with the TLT Assessment calendar.

For all key stages

Summative assessments, once completed are to be kept until the end of key stage and stored in a folder.

Departments/faculties will determine whether assessments outside of the set summative assessment windows mentioned above should be summative or formative, but some form of assessment shared across the faculty/department is required in order to provide student feedback.

Unless part of a formal mock examination period, individual faculties and departments may decide when assessments take place within each set assessment period. Assessments however must be completed and marks recorded on G4S ahead of scheduled data captures.

7.4 Minimum expectations: Student feedback

Grace Academy Coventry has minimum expectations in relation to students receiving feedback across a period of learning. In line with the Department for Education Teachers' Standards, 'teachers must give pupils regular feedback, both orally and through accurate marking' Therefore, it is reasonable that colleagues should expect to have their students' books/work/assessments checked during lesson visits, QA walks, observations or as part of a work-scrutiny by the Head of Department/Faculty or the Academy Leadership Team. Data triangulation will take place after each summative assessment cycle.

For all students and year groups:

- Books, whether exercise books or workbooks, must demonstrate evidence of recent self-assessment (SA), peer assessment (PA) or teacher-acknowledgement marking.
- Feedback will be in the form of whole-class feedback sheets. The frequency of this is outlined below:

KS5: 3* per half-term

KS4 Eng/Maths/Sci: 3* per half-term KS3 Eng/Maths/Sci: 3 per half-term

KS4 Options (other) subjects: 2* per half-term

KS3 Geog/MFL/Hist/PE: 2 per half-term

KS3 Others: 2 per half term

*Any assessments or past papers count towards this, provided group feedback (purple sheets) are used

These must address the following areas:

- Misconceptions are directly highlighted and corrected. This will be primarily focusing upon the entire class but it may be appropriate to highlight a particular student's example in the class feedback sheet. This should be sensitively handled.
- Individual or group praise, highlighting success or improvements.
 Incorrect spelling or non-subject specific literacy are corrected
- Explain what needs to be done to extend their learning. This can be through giving students a
 choice of relevant "DIRT" tasks, or specifically assigned "DIRT" tasks for individual students.
- Summative (or "AP") assessments also require group feedback as outlined above. However, more individualised teacher feedback on the assessment paper is required wherever necessary.
- Individual Positive feedback is to be given when work shows the student has done well.
- Wherever teachers have written comments they should be in purple pen and class feedback sheets should be on coloured paper, stuck into books or workbooks.
- Teachers must insist on the very highest standards of presentation for students' written work in books and folders at all times. Individual faculties may use professional discretion to address specific needs

- within their subject area. Any specific guidelines for presentation will be created and shared by each department or faculty.
- Percentages and/or grades should be added to an individual student's feedback comments following an AP assessment.
- Any homework set will be marked. This may be done through teacher assessment, peer assessment, self-assessment or active verbal feedback.
- If active verbal feedback' is given within lessons, this does not have to be recorded but students are expected to act upon the feedback. Evidence of verbal feedback should be clear during lesson visits and observations (where appropriate).
- Self and peer assessment is to be used as appropriate, and acknowledged with codes SA, PA. In SA and PA students will be made aware of the success criteria in advance, and will have received guidance regarding how to assess.
- When a course is either nearing its completion, or has been completed in Year 11 or Year 13, teachers may use their professional discretion in terms of assessments and how they undertake the marking and feedback of students' work. Teachers should still ensure that regular and precise feedback is given during final examination preparation, whilst adapting it to support in the most appropriate manner.
- Faculties are actively encouraged to share good practice.
- When considering how to feedback to students, departments must adopt this default approach
 outlined above, except in cases where subjects or specific examination board requirements prohibit
 this approach. This applies specifically to some elements of vocational subjects. In those cases, Line
 Managers will work with Heads of Department/Faculty or lead teachers in order to find an appropriate
 solution.

"DIRT" tasks:

- "DIRT" tasks following an assessment may be either progressive or reflective, but should consider the needs of all students and be reflective of the requirement to improve that specific assessment
- Students are expected to engage with, and complete their "DIRT" tasks, and are to be given designated time during lessons in which to do so.
- Engagement in "DIRT" tasks should be recognised through either self-assessment (SA), peer assessment (PA) or teacher acknowledgement marking.
- When the curriculum does not require written or tangible work to be created, there is not a
 requirement for a written "DIRT" task. This will apply mostly in KS3 and in subjects such as PE, Music,
 Drama and Technology. More detail is included in the Non-examination assessment policy.

7.5 Recording and reporting on student progress data

The accurate and timely entry of meaningful student progress data is of paramount importance to both the validation of the assessment process, and ensuring an effective curriculum. The Academy will share this information with students, staff, Parents/Carers, Leaders and Governors in the most appropriate format for each stakeholder or groups of stakeholders.

All staff have access to Go4Schools mark sheets for their allocated classes. These mark sheets will include information regarding prior attainment, SEND, Disadvantaged (as defined by the DfE) and other relevant student groups. All staff are responsible for ensuring that the mark sheet entries for their classes are kept up to date to allow for data snapshots throughout the year, with heads of department/faculty overseeing the entry of their departmental data.

The Academy will report summative assessment data and progress towards targets to Parents/Carers and students in the following manner:

- Students' aspirational targets will be generated through FFT5 (Fischer Family Trust) wherever Key Stage 2 data allows. In cases where Key Stage 2 data is not available, the Academy will set aspirational student targets using internal data or assessments.
- For KS3 reports, student targets are banded into groups (Target grade 3-4/ Target grade 5-6/ Target grade 7-9). The percentage scored in each AP assessment will then be included in the report, along with a statement relating to the student's current progress against their target (significantly below/below/within the band/above/significantly above).
- For KS4 reports, a student's current attainment grade is measured against their end of Year 11 target.
- For KS5 reports, a student's current attainment is measured against their end of Year 13 target.

- For vocational courses, a student's current attainment may be difficult to determine if they have incomplete NEA or coursework and this would mean assigning a grade not reflective of that student's holistic attainment and progress towards a grade. In these cases, staff are to record a "best fit" grade with the support of their line manager or Vice Principal.
- A small minority of students may be set targets of grade 1 or 2, dependent upon individual circumstances and where this would still represent an appropriately aspirational target in that case.
- Full reports (issued once per academic year) will also comment upon a student's behaviour, attendance, engagement in lesson-based and home learning, and further comments will be provided in relation to the curriculum area(s) covered up until the reporting period.

The Vice Principal is responsible for target setting, and must be consulted in any case where target amendments are requested. Targets cannot be amended without authorisation from the Vice Principal.

8. Homework

Homework, or "learning outside of lessons" is work to be done outside the timetabled curriculum, and is a key driver in supporting and raising student achievement. It contains an element of independent study in that it is not usually directly supervised by a teacher. We feel that homework enhances student learning, improves achievement and develops students' study skills and as such is an integral part of the curriculum. As a result, it requires careful planning and integration into the scheme of work of each curriculum area, with subject areas given the autonomy to decide upon the most suitable format and delivery method for them. Whichever method is selected, homework must perform one (or more) of the following functions:

- Consolidate and extend work covered in class or prepare for new learning activities.
- Access resources not available in the classroom.
- Develop research skills.
- Have an opportunity for independent work.
- Show progress and understanding.
- Provide feedback in the evaluation of teaching.
- To enhance their study skills e.g. planning, time management and self-discipline.
- To take ownership and responsibility for learning.
- Engage parental co-operation and support.
- Create channels for home school dialogue.

8.1 Frequency and expectations

The frequency of homework set may vary between departments, but should follow these principles:

- Homework is part of each subject's curriculum plan, and will be assigned accordingly
- Alongside subject-specific homework, KS3 students are to engage in reading homework as set by their form tutor. This is where students continue to read the reading age-appropriate book they are issued in school.

Wherever homework is completed, teachers should acknowledge the completion. This could be through any of the following mechanisms:

- Marking the work
- An automated response, acknowledgement of completion or score (if completed online)
- Awarding positive behavior points
- Proving a comment on the work
- Giving group feedback

When homework is not completed, teachers should initially support the student and ensure the tasks set meet the student's needs. If this is so, then appropriate sanctions could be issued in line with the general school behaviour policy

8.2 The role of the student

- To ensure instructions for the task and deadline date are accurately recorded in planners (SEND students or students with profound EAL needs may need additional support)
- To ensure that homework is completed and handed in to meet the deadline
- To attempt completion to the best possible standard

 In case of any difficulties or barriers, to inform the class teacher of any difficulties at the first available opportunity

8.3 The role of the Form Tutor

- To include homework in their approach when providing student care
- To see that homework is being regularly set and recorded, and flag any concerns to leaders within the Academy (in cases where homework does not appear to be set) and/or Parents/Carers (in cases where homework is not being recorded).
- To check that the diary is being signed by the Parent/Carer
- To note and respond to any homework-related comments written in planners by parents.

8.4 The role of the Class Teacher

The class teacher controls the direction of homework and the nature of tasks undertaken. The teacher will:

- Set homework according to the given curriculum plan
- Give full and comprehensive instructions.
- Set deadlines for completed work and ensure that they are met.
- Acknowledge all homework promptly.
- Provide appropriate levels of scaffold or support for SEND students or students with profound EAL needs.
- Inform the middle leader, form tutor and Head of Year, as appropriate, when problems arise.

9. Monitoring and Quality Assurance

Governors monitor whether the school is complying with its funding agreement and teaching a "broad and balanced curriculum" which includes the required subjects, through:

• Teaching and learning reports in governing body minutes and meetings

The Vice Principal and Assistant Principal for Teaching and Learning monitor the effectiveness of curricula throughout the Academy by:

- Planning and carrying out work scrutinies.
- Conducting lesson visits and/or observations.
- Ensuring a rigorous and effective QA calendar and corresponding cycle.
- Creating reports, which are shared with ALT and Governors.
- Considering examination results, at both KS4 and Post-16
- Taking staff, student and parental feedback.

The Academy Leadership Team monitors the way their subject is taught throughout the school by:

- Engaging effectively in all QA systems, through regular line management meetings and visiting lessons along with middle leaders
- Ensuring they are aware of performance-related data within their line managed subjects, focusing upon attainment/assessment data, behavioural, and attendance-related statistics, Heads of department/subject leaders/lead teachers also have responsibility for:
- Engaging effectively with all QA systems
- Monitoring the way in which resources are stored and managed.

This policy will be reviewed every two years by the Vice Principal. At every review, the policy will be shared with the full governing board.

9. Links with other policies

This policy links to the following policies and procedures:

- Non-examination assessment policy
- SEN policy

- Equality information and objectives
- Literacy strategy
- Numeracy strategy
- CEAIG policy
- Pupil Premium strategy document